Public Document Pack
Please Contact: Nicki Lishman
Extension: 43476
E-mail: democraticservices@ryedale.gov.uk
Date of Publication: 21 June 2022

COUNCIL
IMPORTANT: The meeting of Full Council is being held as an in-person meeting and in
public. In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, current government guidance will be
observed on ‘Living with COVID-19’. The Council Chamber will be well ventilated. Face
coverings and hand sanitiser will be made available.
Please try to stay at home if you are unwell, take a test if you have COVID-19 symptoms, and
stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you test positive.

Council Summons and Agenda
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of Ryedale District Council to
be held in the Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton on Wednesday, 29 June 2022 at
6.30 pm in the evening for the transaction of the following business:
Agenda

1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chair to inform members of the public of the emergency evacuation procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Public Question Time

4

Minutes

(Pages 5 - 10)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on
7 April 2022.

5

Urgent Business
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chair considers should be dealt with
at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

6

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council are
required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is not
discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

7

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chair, the Leader and/or the Head of Paid
Service.

8

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council Procedure
Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)

9

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the following Part
'B' Committee Items:

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 21 April 2022

a

External Auditors Annual Report

(Pages 11 - 42)

Policy and Resources Committee 16 June 2022

b

Norton College Astro-Turf Replacement Funding Request

(Pages 43 - 54)

c

Council Performance - Quarter 4 2021-22

(Pages 55 - 80)

d

Exempt information
To consider a resolution to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the following item 21 (Malton Station Redevelopment – Levelling Up
Fund Application) as provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the
Local Government Act 1972, as the information relates to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). The
public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case, the
public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public interest
in disclosing the information.

e

Malton Rail Station - Levelling Up Fund Application

10

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11

a

Proposed by Councillor P Andrews and seconded by Councillor Burr

(Pages 81 - 94)

That Council enter into negotiations with Fitzwilliam Malton Estate (FME) to sell
Wentworth Street Car Park to FME, subject to the use being restricted to car parking
only and the sale price to be approved by the District Valuer.

11

Any other business that the Chair decides is urgent

Stacey Burlet
Chief Executive

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 4

Council
Minutes of Proceedings
At the Ordinary Meeting of the District Council of Ryedale held in the Council
Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton on Thursday 7 April 2022
Present
Councillors

Joy Andrews, Paul Andrews, Arnold, Bailey, Brackstone, Burr MBE, Clark,
Cleary, Cussons MBE, Duncan, Frank (Chair), Garbutt Moore (ViceChair), Goodrick, Graham, Hope, Di Keal, MacKenzie, Middleton, Potter,
Riby, Thackray and Wass

In Attendance
Stacey Burlet, Elizabeth Heath, Barry Khan, Nicki Lishman, Christine Phillipson and
Harry Rashid

Minutes
134

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Delaney, Docwra, King,
Mason, Oxley and Raine.

135

Public Question Time
There were no public questions.

136

Minutes
The minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 17 and 24 February
2022 were presented.
The Chair explained that the minutes from the meeting of 2 December 2021,
postponed until 17 February 2022, had not been included in the Agenda pack
and were handed out at the meeting of 7 April 2022 for Members’ consideration.
Resolved
That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council postponed from 2
December 2021, held on 17 February 2022 and the minutes of the Ordinary
Meeting of Council held on 17 and 24 February 2022 be approved and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the following minor
amendments;


Council

That Councillor Clark be included as an attendee on the minutes of the
postponed 2 December 2021 meeting of Full Council

1

Page 5

Thursday 7 April 2022



That it be made clear on the minutes of the meeting of 2 December
2021 that the meeting had been postponed and the business of the
agenda had been presented to the Full Council meeting held on 17
February 2022.

Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.
137

Minutes
The minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of Council held on 31 March 2022
were presented.
Councillor Potter proposed and Councillor Andrews seconded the following
amendment;
That the paragraph starting “Councillors Cleary, Docwra, Duncan….etc”
be moved before the voting record and amend the minute to read;
Councillors Cleary, Docwra, Duncan, Graham and Oxley left the meeting
during the vote at 6.48pm.
The amendment was carried by general affirmation.
Resolved
That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 31 March 2022
be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record subject to the
amendment agreed.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.

138

Urgent Business
The Chair announced that there was one item of urgent business.
Homes for Ukraine
All Councils in North Yorkshire had been asked to support a unified programme
to help rehome those displaced.

139

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Potter declared a personal, non-prejudicial and non-pecuniary
interest in Item 11 as he was a member of Ryedale Cycling Forum and a
personal, prejudicial and non-pecuniary interest in item 12a - Pickering CIC as
he was a Director of Pickering Town CIC.

Council

2

Page 6

Thursday 7 April 2022

Councillor Cleary declared a personal, non-prejudicial and non-pecuniary
interest in Items 11 and 12a as he was Chairman and a member of Ryedale
Cycle Forum.
Councillor Goodrick declared a personal, non-prejudicial and non-pecuniary
interest in the Urgent Business as a member of North Yorkshire County Council.
Councillor J Andrews, Brackstone, Clark and Wass declared a personal, nonprejudicial and non-pecuniary interest in Items 12a as a fellow Liberal Member
of Council was a Director of Pickering Town CIC.
140

Announcements
The Chair made the following announcement:
I am delighted to announce that The North Yorkshire Warm Homes Fund, a
project delivered with our partners, YES Energy Solutions, picked up an award
at the recent EDIE Sustainability Leaders Awards. Congratulations to all the
team for this great success.

141

To Receive any Questions submitted by Members Pursuant to Council
Procedure Rule 10.2 (Questions on Notice at Full Council)
There were no questions on notice.

142

Designation of Monitoring Officer
It was moved by Councillor Keal and Councillor Burr seconded that Elizabeth
Heath be appointed as the Council’s Monitoring Officer.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Elizabeth Heath be appointed as the Council’s Monitoring Officer.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.

143

Malton and Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity: Potential Funding
Allocations
It was moved by Councillor Keal and Councillor Burr seconded that;
In relation to the remaining funding allocation, previously approved by Council
for this area of work, it is recommended that Members grant delegated authority
to the Programme Director – Place and Resources, in consultation with the
S.151 Officer and the Chair of Policy and Resources Committee:

Council

3

Page 7

Thursday 7 April 2022

a. to authorise appropriate allocations of funding not exceeding £50,000
towards each of the projects identified in 6.6 (subject to the provision of a
project business case);
b. to authorise appropriate allocations of funding (subject to the provision of
a business case) and subsequent contracting and expenditure for each
of the following (in the event that contributions exceeding £50,000 are
required):
i. the Swinton – Malton ‘Path for Everyone’ project; and
ii. A64 Broughton Road junction project development work.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
In relation to the remaining funding allocation, previously approved by
Council for this area of work, delegated authority be granted to the
Programme Director – Place and Resources, in consultation with the
S.151 Officer and the Chair of Policy and Resources Committee:
a. to authorise appropriate allocations of funding not exceeding £50,000
towards each of the projects identified in 6.6 (subject to the provision
of a project business case);
b. to authorise appropriate allocations of funding (subject to the
provision of a business case) and subsequent contracting and
expenditure for each of the following (in the event that contributions
exceeding £50,000 are required):
i. the Swinton – Malton ‘Path for Everyone’ project; and
ii. A64 Broughton Road junction project development work.
Voting record
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Brackstone, Burr, Clark, Cussons, Frank,
Keal, Middleton, Potter, Riby, Thackray and Wass.
Against
Councillors Cleary, Duncan, Graham and Mackenzie.
Abstentions
Councillors Arnold, Bailey, Garbutt Moore, Goodrick and Hope.
144

To consider for Approval the Recommendations in respect of the
following Part 'B' Committee Items:

145

Minute 114 - Pickering Town CIC - Cycling Hub Proposal
It was moved by Councillor Keal and Councillor Burr seconded that;
The Council approves funding of £175,000 to fund works outlined in section
6.12 (of the report), subject to overview of detailed plans, with delegated

Council

4

Page 8

Thursday 7 April 2022

authority given to the Programme Director to release the funds, in consultation
with the Chair of Policy and Resources Committee.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That funding of £175,000 to fund works outlined in section 6.12 (of the
report), subject to overview of detailed plans, be approved and delegated
authority given to the Programme Director to release the funds, in
consultation with the Chair of Policy and Resources Committee.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor Potter left the
room during discussion and voting on this item.
146

Minute 115 - Council Performance - Quarter 3 2021-2022
It was moved by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Burr that;
The progress update on Council performance up to the end of quarter three of
the reporting cycle for 2021-22 is noted.
Resolved
That the progress report be noted.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.

147

Minute 116 - Timetable of Meetings 2022-2023
It was moved by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Burr that;
Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, attached as
Annex A to the report, as a basis for working in 2022-23.
Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That the timetable of meetings, attached as Annex A to the report, as a
basis for working in 2022-23 be approved.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.

Council

5

Page 9

Thursday 7 April 2022

148

Motions on Notice Submitted Pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 11
There were no Motions on Notice.

149

Any other business that the Chair decides is urgent
It was moved by Councillor Keal and seconded by Councillor Burr that;
In light of the mass relocation of Ukrainian citizens, all councils across North
Yorkshire have been asked to support a unified programme to help rehome
those displaced. It is recommended that:
(i)

Ryedale District Council adopts the county wide approach.

Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.
Resolved
That Ryedale District Council adopts the county wide approach.
Voting record
Carried by general affirmation.
There being no other items of urgent business, the meeting closed at 8.15pm.

Council

6

Page 10

Thursday 7 April 2022

Agenda Item 9a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

29 JUNE 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE ON 21 APRIL 2022

106

External Auditors Annual report
Recommendation

It is recommended to Council that the progress report is noted.

Voting Record
Carried by general affirmation

Council

Page 11

29 June 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 APRIL 2022

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ ANNUAL REPORT

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The attached document is the External Auditor’s Annual Report for 2020/21.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes the External Auditor’s Annual Report.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The report gives the Council an independent view of how it is achieving Value for
Money

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Risks are taken into account as part of the annual audit and feed through into the
attached report.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 sets a requirement for auditors to be
satisfied that each local the authority has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

5.2

On 1 April 2020, a new Code of Audit Practice came into force which sets out how
local auditors are expected to approach and report their work on VFM arrangements
from 2020/21 onwards.

Page 13
OFFICIAL

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Statement of Accounts was presented to Committee in December 2021 and
approved in January 2022 after Policy and Resources had the authority to sign off the
accounts to the s151 Officer in consultation with the Chair of the Committee and all
Group Leaders (assuming there are no material changes after Audit Committee).
However this did not include the Annual Value for Money Report from the Auditors and
it was noted that this Report would be brought to Committee in the spring of 2022.

6.2

The Committee had previously been made aware of the significant challenges facing
public sector audit across the country and the impact this was having on deadlines.
The government has recently addressed this by suggesting further changes to the
timescales for signing off the 2021/22 accounts.

6.3

The Value for Money report is now attached here noting that there are no significant
weaknesses in financial sustainability, governance or improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness. There are some recommendations to assist the Council as it moves
towards LGR, particularly in respect of the need to maintain appropriate budgetary
controls in the run up to the end of RDC as a separate legal entity on 31 March 2023,
and also to ensure the ‘dual running’ of the plans for the new unitary North Yorkshire
council and the continuing work of RDC are appropriately planned and monitored.

6.4

Members of the committee will have the opportunity to ask the External Auditor and
s151 Officer about the detail at the meeting.

6.5

Following Audit Committee’s consideration of the Report, it will be made available to
all members at the next Full Council meeting.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
There are no financial implications regarding this report.

b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None arise from the contents of this report. Such implications are taken into
account as part of the budget process

Name of Head of Service
Job Title
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43385
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Page 14
OFFICIAL

Page 15

Commercial in confidence

Page 16

Commercial in confidence

Page 17

Commercial in confidence

Page 18

Commercial in confidence

Page 19
•
•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 20

Commercial in confidence

•

•

Page 21

•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•

Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

Page 22

Commercial in confidence

Financial Challenges due to LGR

Page 23

Commercial in confidence

•
•

Page 24

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 25

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 26
•

•

•

•

Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Page 27

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 28

Commercial in confidence

Page 29

•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 30

Commercial in confidence

•

Page 31

Commercial in confidence

•

•

Page 32
•

•

Commercial in confidence

Page 33

Commercial in confidence

Page 34

Commercial in confidence

Page 35

Commercial in confidence

•

•

Page 36

Page 37

Commercial in confidence

Page 38

•
•

Commercial in confidence

Page 39

Commercial in confidence

Page 40
•
•
•

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9b

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

29 JUNE 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 16 JUNE 2022

15

Norton College Astro-Turf replacement funding request
Recommendation to Council

Policy and Resources Committee recommends that:
(i)

Funding of 90% towards the estimated total project cost for the replacement astro-turf
pitch at Norton College up to a maximum of £108,000 be provided;

(ii) Provision of a grant is subject to 10% match funding from the College, a robust
procurement process being undertaken by the College, the provision of a community use
plan, and completion within 2022/23;
(iii) Agreement of the procurement process and the community use plan is delegated to the
Programme Director for Place and Resources in consultation with the S151 Officer and
the Chair of the Policy and Resources Committee.
Voting Record
Unanimous
Please note:
The report which follows has been updated, following debate at Policy & Resources
Committee on 17 June 2022 and Recommendation (iv) has been added to the paper.

Council

Page 43

29 June 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

16 JUNE 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR – PLACE AND RESOURCES
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

NORTON
COLLEGE
FUNDING REQUEST

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

ASTRO-TURF

REPLACEMENT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report is to consider the allocation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
funding of up to £158,000 towards the total project cost of replacing the astro-turf
pitch at Norton College.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that that:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

3.0

Funding of 90% towards the estimated total project cost for the replacement
astro-turf pitch at Norton College up to a maximum of £108,000;
Provision of a grant being subject to 10% match funding from the College, a
robust procurement process being undertaken by the College, the provision of
a community use plan, and completion within 2022/23;
If approved by Elected Members, agreement of the procurement process and
the community use plan is delegated to the Programme Director for Place and
Resources in consultation with the S151 Officer and the Chair of the Policy
and Resources Committee; and
As discussed by Policy and Resources committee on 16 June 2022 an
additional maximum of £50,000 is made available to Norton College should a
new base or other works be required.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

Supporting the recommendation set out above would provide Norton College with the
facility they need and would allow for community use of a facility otherwise not currently
within the town for local residents.
6POLICY AND RESOURCES
16 JUNE 2022

Page 45

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Price fluctuations and increasing costs are a feature of many schemes at this time
and this project will be no exception. It is proposed that any additional costs incurred
or an increase in prices should be a risk borne by Norton College should RDC grant
assistance be provided.

4.2

Supporting individual requests for funding may mean an increase in requests from
other organisations and groups from across Ryedale looking to secure CIL funding.
This represents a further risk that Members and Officers could be overwhelmed by
requests and as there are currently no strategic plans in place to direct usage of
these funds, decisions on any future requests would need to be made on a case by
case basis. It is the view of Officers that there is currently insufficient time and
capacity within the Authority at this time to prepare a policy for use of CIL funds.

4.3

If the available CIL monies are not utilised and allocated to existing schemes, at this
time Officers are unsure on remaining CIL funds will be utilised within the new North
Yorkshire Council. Funds may be ring-fenced for the area in which they were
collected, or they could be collated into a single central pot for use across the new
Council area.

4.4

Should funding not be allocated to Norton College, it is possible that of the remaining
options, there will be no astro-turf facility. Other options include doing nothing,
removal and changing of the sand on the surface at a cost of c.£30-40,000 providing
a further 2 years usage, or securing the future of an astro-turf facility through a
potentially costly lease agreement.

4.5

Norton College operates as an academy overseen by a trust (Evolution Schools
Learning Trust) and is the only college within the Trust. As an academy the college
is outside of Local Authority control and has greater freedom than state schools over
various aspects of its operation including its finances.

4.6

Funding for this scheme is not on RDC’s Forward Plan for 2022/23. As this is a
request for in excess of £100,000 of revenue funding, it is likely to require approval
from North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) as part of the Section 24 process under
Local Government Reorganisation. Exact details of this process are still to be
determined.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

Current school based leisure provision in Ryedale is through the Northern Ryedale
Sports Centre at Lady Lumley’s School in Pickering where RDC holds a Joint Use
Agreement for use of the facilities by Everyone Active outside of school hours, and an
annual grant to support the operation of Malton Community Sports Centre at Malton
School, which outside of school hours and usage is also available for community use.

5.2

The Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013 – 2023 has a vision for ‘everyone
in Ryedale to enjoy an active, adventurous, and healthy lifestyle as an integral part of
everyday life, encouraging more people, to become more active, more often’. The

6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 46

Strategy aims for more people to be taking part in sport and active recreation and
whilst not specifically identifying school based leisure provision directly, it does
identify a number of ways of supporting this aim including continuing grant support for
other third party sport and leisure facilities in Ryedale, namely Helmsley Outdoor
Pool and Malton Community Sports Centre (MCSC), and supporting improvements to
village halls/voluntary clubs infrastructure, play areas through Section 106 / CIL
applications.
5.3

The Ryedale District Council Plan references healthy lives, sport and leisure and
recreation in the following way:
‘Our Communities: Strong, Inclusive and Attractive’ states ‘we will promote
health and wellbeing for all by offering leisure facilities and access to physical
activity. We will work with our leisure provider and other partners to expand
access to these opportunities and identify funding streams that will support
our aims’.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

A direct written approach was made to the Policy and Resources Committee of
Ryedale District Council (RDC) by Norton College making a formal request via the
letter to seek CIL funding to support the refurbishment of the astro-turf pitch at the
College for use by both the students and as a community facility.

6.2

The letter of application was also sent to Norton East and Norton West RDC Elected
Members.

6.3

Norton College currently has on site two full sized grass pitches which in the summer
is converted to an athletics track and cricket pitch, a smaller area used for hockey, and
an astro-turf pitch, however this is not currently in use. The astro-turf pitch was
installed in 2008 and through regular usage by the school and external users over 12
years it had become worn out. Use of the facility for football and hockey was
suspended on the advice of the College’s insurers in February 2020. It remains in an
unusable condition and the facility is out of bounds to both school PE groups as well
as external users.

6.4

Images of the current pitch provided by Norton College show that whilst the fencing
around the pitch is in good condition, there is severe wear on the facility, with a worn
carpet surface, and drainage issues when the weather is poor and as a consequence
the pitch is contaminated with dirt, silt and moss. This is confirmed by a pitch condition
survey undertaken by Notts Sport for the college.

6.5

In December 2021 Notts Sport also provided the College with an estimated cost for a
replacement facility to address the issues found with the original pitch including the
construction of the base and drainage issues, in addition to the replacement of the
synthetic surface. It should be noted the funding requested is for a new surface only
and not a new base – this would have an additional cost attached. As an estimate, no
specific specification has been developed at this time. The site has existing floodlights
and these, like the fencing, are not included for repair or replacement within the
estimate provided. It is this estimate from Notts Sport that forms that basis of the
College’s ask for financial support.

6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 47

6.6

Over the last 12 years the facility was maintained in-house by the College until a point
in time when the condition became unserviceable. In 2017 Norton College
commissioned a specialist company to undertake a facelift of the surface and this
extended the life for a further year. It was then around this time that the facility was
deemed unusable.

6.7

Without a usable astro-turf pitch the college is unable to fully develop its sports offer to
deliver the curriculum, and extracurricular activities are also impacted. Examples of
this provided by the College include:
 Hockey (unless on grass which significantly restricts development) or tennis
cannot be offered in either curriculum or extra-curricular time;
 Netball has to be taught inside in the sports hall which means a class of 28
would share one court. During games therefore 50% of the class would be
‘waiting’ for their turn. On the Astroturf, they could have 2-3 courts. This would
increase opportunities in both lesson times and extra-curricular clubs;
 A reduction in standard of assessment levels is being noticed – some students
are competent players who would gain higher grades if the College could
access the curriculum more sufficiently (tennis in particular, but hockey and
netball are also impacted);
 The College’s sports teams are suffering from poor performances and missed
opportunities to participate. As all schools play on astroturf Norton College
therefore no longer attend hockey inter-school and regional fixtures - teams
become demoralised as they cannot compete on an unfamiliar surface.
Previously the College had hockey teams at all age groups and tennis teams
for U13’s and U15’s – these now do not exist.
 Delivery of some specific courses has also been impacted. In particular Level
3 BTEC Sports Practical Performance where the opportunity to include hockey
as a sport has had to be substituted for football which does not suit all students.
 Having to relocate sports from outside into the sports hall has a knock on effect
in reducing the opportunity for other sports such as gymnastics to be taking
place inside.

6.8

Through the installation of a new astro–turf facility, the College has identified the
following additional uses for the facility beyond being used to deliver the curriculum as
it currently takes place:
 Re-introducing hockey and tennis to the curriculum as a school sport;
 Hockey teams being entered into local festivals and competitions;
 Netball outside (with more courts for continuous practice and more time to
develop);
 More recreational sport taking place;
 Relieve pressure on the sports hall by moving more sports outside, so
increasing time for badminton, basketball, gymnastics or other indoor sport
 There is the opportunity to bring alternate games back for Y10 sports rotation
(futsal, handball, tchoukball, ultimate frisbee etc);
 The facility will provide a space to play outdoors in all-weathers when the grass
is too wet or frozen; but the weather is fine. Currently this scenario results in
two PE groups pairing up, and ultimately means that the planned curriculum
lesson is collapsed or significantly adapted; and
 The College would also be able to reinstate its links with primary schools
through football, hockey and tennis festivals.

6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 48

6.9

College staff feel that replacing the astro-turf pitch and making this facility available for
all students once again will see improved assessment grades, an improved
involvement in physical activity time, improved team performances, extra-curricular
provision strengthened and broadened, 6th Form options extended in curriculum and
during enrichment, greater practical sport options for Cambridge National and BTEC
courses at Year 10 to Year 13, and it will help to secure the future of PE as a viable ALevel subject at the College. With future Post 16 educational reforms, Norton College
will have to offer A Level PE as BTEC’s (currently offered) will be discontinued. From
2023/24 the college will therefore need a higher level facilities such as an astro-turf
pitch.

6.10

Norton College has stated a commitment to making this facility available to the public
outside of school hours. The College has indicated that a ‘reasonable charge’ would
be made for external usage which would be used to cover maintenance, energy costs
for the existing floodlights, administration and staffing for the supervision of the facility.
It is however noted that any additional staffing costs are likely to be minimal as the
college already have some facilities, which are staffed and open on an evening and at
weekends. An electronic booking system is already place and this can be adapted to
suit changing needs.

6.11

Norton College anticipate the facility to be open to the community for use during the
same times as the existing fitness suite – currently weekday evenings 4.30pm - 9.30pm
and weekends 7.30am - 12.30pm. The College anticipates that weekend opening
could be extended beyond the current fitness suite in line with demand. Similarly to the
usage expected by the College, community usage is envisaged to be mainly around
football, tennis, hockey and netball. Any RDC financial support would be subject to
putting in place a community use agreement with the College to ensure that out of
hours use of the facility is maximised.

6.12

Currently Norton residents must travel around 2 miles (the equivalent to a 40 minute
walk) to the Malton Community Sports Centre which is the closest similar facility.
Should a facility be made available in Norton, residents will be within a radius of an
approximately 15 minute walk. There is also currently a significant housing
development planned for Norton with the potential for around 700 new homes. This
facility would be a great asset to both existing and new residents.

6.13

Norton College have stated that they wish these facilities to be fully inclusive and to
support the entire community in accessing facilities at the site. College Trustees like
to see the site in use after hours, and feels this brings so many benefits, be it income
generation to maintain facilities for all, security of the site whilst in use, provide
employment opportunities, or simply just to improve community perception of the
College as a truly integral part of the community. Whilst the college has not generated
an independent evidence base to support this request, their understanding is that the
town is growing, and the sports and fitness facilities will become stretched as demand
increases. The facility at Malton Community Sports Centre is viewed as being football
focussed and in demand, however Norton College feel that the astroturf would not only
give extra access for football, but also additional options for hockey, netball and tennis.

6.14

A recent estimate received by Norton College to install a replacement astro-turf pitch
indicates an estimated cost of £120,000. There are however limitations to this estimate
that should be considered. As a budget estimate, it has been provided to give an
indication of scale of likely potential costs but given the current climate there is
significant potential for an increase in costs and variations in the availability of the

6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 49

required materials. Additionally, the estimate has been provided by Notts Sport Limited
– they would not deliver the scheme directly but would project manage the scheme
and appoint subcontractors to complete this work. This particular company were
approached due their ability to offer a Department for Education approved lease
financing arrangements, as at this time the College had no other way of financing the
scheme.
6.15

Independent verification of these costs has been sought by RDC and it is Officers
understanding that a budget of £120,000 is a figure that can be expected to be seen
for a sand dressed astro-turf pitch of this size. It should be noted that this is only for
the surfacing, if a new base is required, this could add £50,000 to the total. As this is
not included in the College’s ask, this is a financial risk that would sit with them.

6.16

Norton College has stated that they are able to provide 10% cash match funding
towards the costs of this project equating to £12,000 based on the estimate received.

6.17

The College has clearly stated in its initial letter of request that without significant
external financial support, replacement of the pitch is beyond their financial capacity.
Like many small secondary schools, the College states they currently have no financial
reserves so at this time any capital spending would have to be funded from the
education revenue budget. A lease option has been considered, as referenced above
in 6.13, but this is not felt to be a financially viable proposition for the college.

6.18

Norton College have confirmed that the lease option is not affordable from a financial
perspective. It is considered to be very much a last resort option to follow the leasing
route and to do this at the level of the estimate, other school priorities will ultimately
have to be changed. At this time Norton College do not feel in a position to take on
this financial commitment. Alternative funding requests have been made, albeit
unsuccessfully, to the Football Association, Sport England and England Hockey.

6.19

Currently RDC has approximately £3 million of unallocated CIL funding however a
current Infrastructure Funding Statement for 2022/23 is being prepared, so this figure
may change

6.20

Officers have also reviewed the current situation in relation to any remaining S106
funds but there are insufficient funds remaining which would be able to support such a
scheme in this geographical location.

6.21

Maintenance is crucial if the life span of the facility is to be maximised. Norton College
has committed to ensuring the pitch is maintained through weekly brushing either by
existing staff or the current grounds maintenance contact, and two specialist visits per
year to ensure the pitch remains in good condition.

6.22

Following the submission of the request being considered by this report, a further
request for financial support for the replacement of fitness suite equipment, again
utilising CIL funds, has been received from the college.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
(i)

Financial

RDC currently holds approximately £3 million of CIL funds.
6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 50

Given the revenue value of the request being made, it is expected that this request will
also require a Section 24 Local Government Review approval. The exact process for
this is still to be determined.
(ii)

Legal

Officers will seek advice from Legal if the offer of a grant is made to ensure any grant
agreement and terms and conditions are fit for purpose. The specific requirements as
outlined in the 2.1 will also be included in this agreement.
(iii)

Environmental, Ecological, Climate Change and Carbon

Advice from the Climate Change Officer has been requested and it is noted that having
a sports pitch in both Malton and Norton and promoting active travel at each site would
decrease traffic emissions, by reducing the number of car miles needed to reach the
sport centres.
Artificial turf is not of benefit to biodiversity/ecology compared to a natural turf pitch as
artificial turf blocks assess to the soil beneath for insects and other animals. As single
plastic item, an astro-turf pitch is composed of a range of polymer and rubber type
materials. At present they are not widely recyclable but do potentially have a long
lifetime depending on maintenance.
Research into the ground and air pollution from artificial turfs varies; however, there is
potential for toxicological and environmental contamination from the materials during
water run-off and release of volatile organic gaseous emissions into the atmosphere.
It is however appreciated that potential for contamination is minimal and there are no
other viable options if an all-weather surface is to be installed.
(iv)

Equalities

An Equality Impact Assessment will be completed prior to the offer of a grant if agreed
by Members.
(v)

Staffing

There is expected to be a limited impact on RDC Officers, however if the offer of a
grant is made by Members, this will require capacity from both the Economic
Development and Finance teams to make the grant offer and manage and monitor the
grant until the scheme is completed.
(vi)

Planning

RDC Planning Officers confirmed that RDC does currently hold CIL funding and there
is a sufficient amount available to cover the costs requested by Norton College. To
date it has been thought that a significant proportion of the CIL monies held by RDC
would be required to provide a new school in Norton. The status of this need is
currently uncertain. It was also noted that the way in which CIL funds will be utilised
from April 2023 onwards has not yet been determined.
6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 51

Officers also highlighted that there is currently no prioritisation process in place for
Members to follow and any requests would need to be considered on a case by case
basis, however this could result in additional demands on capacity within the authority.
(vii)

Health and Safety

There are not anticipated to be any Health and Safety implications for Ryedale District
Council as a result of any decision.
(viii)

Crime & Disorder

As a grant being provided to an external organisation, there are not expected to be any
crime and disorder implications for RDC. The project is to replace an existing and now
unsuitable facility. Ongoing management of the site including security will be overseen
by Norton College.
(ix)

Data Privacy

As a grant bring provided to an external organisation, details of the recipient and grant
awarded will be retained in the same manner as other RDC grant recipients.
Phillip Spurr
Programme Director – Place and Resources
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Amy Thomas, Economic Development Service Manager
07425 533658
amy.thomas@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Request for Funding from Norton College
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 52

6POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9c

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

29 JUNE 2022

SUBJECT:

PART ‘B’ REFERRALS FROM POLICY AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE ON 16 JUNE 2022

16

Council Performance Quarter 4 – 2021-22
Recommendation

It is recommended to Council that the progress report is noted.
Voting Record
Approved by general affirmation.

Council

Page 55

29 June 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES

DATE:

16 JUNE 2022

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME DIRECTOR, PEOPLE AND RESOURCES
MARGARET WALLACE

TITLE OF REPORT:

COUNCIL PERFORMANCE – QUARTER 4 2021-2022

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide a progress update on Council performance up to the end of quarter 4 of the
reporting cycle (January – March 2022) for 2021-22.

1.2

The update covers delivery of the Council Plan 2020-2024 and progress against key
performance indicators (KPIs) and data only indicators.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to Council that:
(i)

The progress report is noted.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To inform Elected Members of progress in delivering the Council’s objectives and key
performance indicators.

3.2

Where applicable, any specific areas where progress for individual KPIs has not been
achieved are highlighted with an explanation of planned development actions to make
improvements moving forward, as detailed below.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

In mid-January 2022, the Government announced its plans to end England’s Plan B
Covid-19 restrictions. On 24 February 2022 most legal restrictions ended, including the
requirement to work from home wherever possible and the country began to treat Covid
the same as other infectious diseases such as flu. As a result, quarter 4 saw a
significant increase in new cases of Covid-19 across the county as a whole, which
continued to have a significant impact on resources and workloads during this period

POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 57

of time (January – March 2022). Vaccines remained the first line of defence against
the virus and the Council has continued to fulfil its obligations in line with the Health
and Safety Executive by encouraging staff to let in fresh air when meeting indoors,
wearing a face covering in crowded and enclosed spaces and continuing to regularly
wash and sanitise their hands.
4.2

Towards the end of quarter 4, the Council began to plan ahead for further detailed
Government advice on the national Covid-19 changes due to take effect from 01 April
2022. In order to maintain service delivery as well as protect staff and members of the
community, flexible working arrangements were promoted, with staff being asked to
reach agreement with their managers on returning to office based work in line with the
business needs of individual services.

4.3

Quarter 4 saw further disruption to people, communities and businesses coming from
severe weather conditions with Storms Malik, Corrie, Dudley, Eunice and Franklin
affecting the whole of the UK. Once again, this had an impact on workload and
resources, to ensure all those affected, received the help and assistance required to
maintain their health and wellbeing.

4.4

The impact on performance of local government reorganisation during quarter 4 has
continued at pace and the organisation has continued to see the impact of losing staff
and expertise as we move forward with this process. The risk associated with the need
to pull on staff resources to meet the required timelines and the continuing uncertainty
for staff resulting in a higher staff turnover is likely to continue to increase moving
forward. Backfilling posts to help deal with capacity issues around continuing to deliver
business as usual services, as well as the additional local government reorganisation
workload has helped to alleviate challenges in relation to resource issues and is an
ongoing process.

4.5

However, despite the ongoing and the unforeseen challenges during quarter 4, the
commitment and resilience of staff across Ryedale has meant that key services across
the organisation have been sufficiently maintained to support residents and
communities. This means, the majority of key performance indicators continue to be at
target.

4.6

As full delivery of the 2020-24 Council Plan will not be possible by the time Ryedale
District Council ceases to exist in April 2023, a reprioritisation process is being
conducted to determine priorities for delivery between now and this date.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Quarter 4 2021/2022 report shows progress across all of the Council’s corporate
priorities: Our Communities, Our Economy, Our Environment and Our Organisation.

5.2

Key performance indicators continue to be largely on track.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS
Introduction and background

6.1

Performance reporting of progress against the Council’s priorities – as set out in the
Council Plan 2020-24 – is a key element of performance management arrangements.

6.2

Ongoing successful delivery of the Council’s priorities is demonstrated by a

POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 58

combination of:


Progress against priority projects/high level actions (are we meeting/expecting
to meet delivery timescales); and



Performance against relevant key performance indicators and data only
indicators (are targets being met; are we getting better).

This report covers the period January – March 2022.
6.3

This report includes the following detail:
 Actions and project activities completed against the aims and objectives set out
under each theme of the Council’s objectives in the Council Plan 2020-24.


Relevant key performance indicator statistics measured against the Council’s
priorities.



Future activities planned to address the areas requiring some improvement.

Summary of progress
6.4

This report shows the ongoing strong performance of this Council in the fourth quarter
of 2021-22, across all its ambitions. The Council continues to support people,
communities and businesses despite the ongoing challenges brought about by the
Covid-19 pandemic, disruptions from severe weather and local government
reorganisation.

6.5

Overall, out of the 12 key performance indicators with targets, 8 are showing a green
status and 4 as an amber status, with no indicators at a red status for the first time
during the reporting year 2021/22. Particular highlights are as follows:


The speed of processing new claims for both housing benefit and council tax
support remain significantly higher than target, placing this Council as the best
performing authority in North Yorkshire for processing housing benefit new
claims.



The % of processing of standard searches carried out in 10 working days has
improved from a red status in quarters 1, 2 and 3 to an amber status, with an
individual quarter 4 performance figure of 99.3% and now operating at the
cumulative figure of 85.6%, falling just below the target of 90%.



The number of new affordable homes completed has moved from an amber
status in quarter 3 to a green status in quarter 4, and with a cumulative figure
for the reporting year of 89 has exceeded the annual target of 75 per annum.



The number of empty properties brought back into use through Council
involvement has moved from an amber status in quarter 3 to a green status in
quarter 4, achieving the cumulative target for the reporting year of 6 per annum.

Amber Indicators
6.6

Amber indicators are important to highlight as they show where the Council must
maintain a level of vigilance to ensure that performance does not slip further. The

POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 59

number of amber indicators has remained the same in quarter 4 as in quarter 3,
however, this is partly due to one indicator moving from a red to an amber status, which
overall is a significant improvement.
Minor and Other Planning Applications
6.7

As a result of the reduction in the number of processing minor and other planning
applications within target, steps already taken to interrogate the system have revealed
that the dip in the decision times for minor and other applications has occurred as a
result of extensions of time not been agreed with and/or by agents and applicants in
the last month of quarter 4 – this equates to circa 17 applications. As a result, action
has been taken to remind all planning staff to seek extensions of time to the
determination period where necessary and to have these agreed/in place before an
application reaches the end of its statutory determination period.

% of Standard Searches Carried Out In 10 Working Days
6.8

Although the percentage of standard searches carried out in 10 working days is
showing an amber status in quarter 4, this represents a huge improvement by way of
moving from being a red status throughout all previous quarters this year. With the
issues experienced in quarter 1 having now largely been resolved and the individual
quarter 4 performance figure at 99.3%, this improvement is expected to continue
moving forward into the new financial year 2022/23.

Household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting
6.9

Kerbside dry recycling and garden waste composting measures are consistent with
expected seasonal variation, resulting in garden waste tonnages inevitably remaining
low during the months of January to March, with residents spending less time
gardening in colder, wetter weather, than during the warmer summer months.
In addition to this, quarter 4 has seen an increase in bulky waste collections and
residual waste tonnes collected, thought to be largely down to an increased number
of residents now working from home and an increased level of activity in the
deployment of the mechanical street sweeper. The expectation is to see significant
improvement in this indicator as we move into spring, when the weather starts to
improve again.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Delivery of Council Plan priorities is reflected in the Medium Term Financial
Strategy.
b) Legal
The organisation complies with all relevant statutory, legislative and constitutional
matters when executing the delivery of its Council Plan and delivering against key
performance indicators.
c) Resource
Performance reporting highlights where we can explore opportunities to adjust
resources to support effective implementation of the Council Plan as part of our ongoing business and budget planning.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 60

d) Other
Equalities, staffing, health and safety, and policy matters such as environmental
and climate change inform the content and execution of the Council Plan and
performance priorities on an ongoing basis. Anyone requiring this information in an
alternative format, may contact the report author to request this.
Name of Service Lead
Job Title

Margaret Wallace
Programme Director, People and Resources

Author:

Lynne Bayes, Strategy & Performance Manager

Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

07423 663689
lynne.bayes@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Council Plan 2020 – 2024
https://www.ryedale.gov.uk/resources/council-plan/

POLICY AND RESOURCES

16 JUNE 2022

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Delivering the Council Plan: Quarter 4 2021-22
Introduction
This quarter 4 performance report provides details of the Council’s achievements between January and March 2022.
It also highlights any challenges to overcome moving forward.

Summary of Performance Indicators
Key performance indicators (KPIs) provide one tool for measuring performance against the priorities in the Council Plan 2020-24. They have a target, a green, amber or red
status and an arrow to show the performance trend in comparison to the previous quarter.
Data-only indicators measure performance in a shorter timeframe to identify how the Council is delivering projects and activities on an ongoing basis to achieve the overall
aims in the Council Plan. These indicators can be affected by a number of things including variations in market trends, customer activities and events and as such, they do
not have a target.

Page 63

Key
 Improved performance
 Maintained performance
 Decline in performance

Contents
Communities: strong, inclusive and attractive – Page 2
Economy: harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs – Page 8
Environment: a sustainable, safe and clean place – Page 11
Organisation: an innovative, enterprising council – Page 14

1

Our communities; strong, inclusive and attractive

We will tackle homelessness, rough sleeping and
poverty by providing services in partnership with
others to prevent homelessness.

Page 64

We will offer advice, support and budgeting
assistance to those who need it, helping them to
manage their finances, ensuring they can access
Citizens’ Advice services and working with the credit
union to promote access to small loans. We will also
act promptly to process benefit applications.

Help for those in need
Achievements in Quarter 4
 Towards the end of March 2022, the Council began working alongside partners at NYCC and with the wider
community to offer homes to people fleeing conflict in Ukraine. The Homes for Ukraine Sponsorship Scheme
involves conducting a number of visits to assess and review the suitability of prospective accommodation. As
at the end of quarter 4, individual sponsorships in Ryedale resulted in 13 visas being issued.
 A part-time Support Worker for Ex-Offenders started in post to work in collaboration with a number of other
service providers to assist prison leavers to obtain and sustain accommodation. Success has already been
achieved during this quarter, in providing assistance and support to enable a prison leaver to access new
accommodation.
 The Council used additional funding from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities to
protect vulnerable renters by assisting 10 households to sustain their current accommodation and moving 2
further households into alternative accommodation, to prevent future homelessness.

Description
Housing Benefit
Speed of processing new
Housing Benefit Claims
Council Tax Support
Speed of processing new
claims for Council Tax
Support

RDC
Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Trend
(previous
Qtr)

<21 days

6.9

7.1

4.7

5.3

1

<25 days

19.1

16.7

13.2

14.0

1

RAG
Status

1

Quarter 4 saw a slight increase in Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support new claims processing times as a result of a continued increase in Test and Trace support
payments.
Achievements in Quarter 4
 Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support new claims processing times continued to perform well above target. This Council remains the best-performing local
authority in North Yorkshire for processing Housing Benefit new claims.

2

Description
We will create a district where everyone feels welcome and
can thrive. We will safeguard vulnerable people, become a
‘dementia-friendly’ and ‘autism-friendly’ Council, and
ensure that equalities, mental health and well-being are at
the heart of service design, giving training to our
employees and encouraging businesses and communities
to do the same.

Safeguarding
Number of referrals
Safeguarding
Percentage of Employees who have
read the Safeguarding Policy
Safeguarding
Percentage of Employee with up to
date Level 1 Safeguarding Training
Safeguarding
Percentage of Employees with up to
date PREVENT Training

Value/
Baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Data Only

5

3

10

7

New Q2
Data Only

N/A

90%

95%

96%

New Q3
Data Only

N/A

N/A

55%

75%

New Q3
Data Only

N/A

N/A

68%

69%

Page 65

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Although quarter 4 has seen fewer safeguarding referrals compared to quarter 3, overall, the second half of the year has realised a much stronger performance
than the first half. Referrals made during the quarter came from both inside and outside the housing team, evidencing that work to increase awareness of
safeguarding issues has given staff the confidence to raise any concerns.
 During quarter 4, 33 staff attended a monthly safeguarding training session; further training took place at the depot and another 5% of the workforce are
scheduled to complete their training in April. The introduction of video training has played a significant part in the increased level of employees with up to date
Level 1 Safeguarding Training.
 Effective use of social media underpinned successful awareness campaigns, with a particular focus on raising awareness of domestic abuse services and related
topics. During quarter 4, the number of people who saw content relating to domestic abuse awareness on the Council’s social media sites totalled 6,323 and the
average engagement rate was 8.5%, which is significantly higher than the national average of around 4%. In addition, evidence from statistics calculated across
the quarter suggests that public engagement rates almost quadruple when video content is used to promote public interest.

We want everyone in our communities to be able to live
independent lives. We will promote our Lifeline service and
provide well-being services, Disabled Facilities Grants and
handyperson services to enable people to stay in their
homes. We will also support community transport schemes
to help those in need get around.

Description
Ryecare
Total number of Ryecare customers
Ryecare
No of new Ryecare installations

3

Value/
Baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Trend
(previous
Qtr)

Data Only

540

543

522

513



Data Only 127
for 2020/21

31

31

19

27



Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Ryecare Lifeline service helps residents to live independently, with a dedicated team answering calls around the clock, handling out-of-hours requests for
shelter from the homeless, flooding alerts, and getting assistance to Lifeline customers in difficulty. The closing figure for quarter 4 was 513 live connections, a
reduction of 9 from the previous quarter. This is due to customers moving into residential care or sadly passing away. In January 2022, a Ryecare Marketing and
Admin Officer commenced in post and began promoting the Ryecare service with the aim of increasing the number of live connections and installations.
 The Handyperson service carries out minor adaptations and small repair jobs for residents across Ryedale, usually lasting less than three hours, such as fitting
shelves, smoke alarms, changing light bulbs, hanging pictures and many other items or small repairs. During quarter 4, this service delivered 102 minor adaptions
and 33 small repairs, representing a third more compared to the previous quarter.
 Disabled Facilities Grants help disabled and elderly people to live more comfortably and independently in their own home by altering or adapting their homes.
Quarter 4 saw the completion of 37 Disabled Facilities Grants and 10 referrals.
 Ryedale Community Transport CIO provides affordable rural transport solutions for people who are disadvantaged because of physical or mental disability,
geographical isolation or through deprivation and poverty. During this quarter 1,317 journeys were made, bringing the annual total to 5,570. This represents a 6%
fall in journeys compared to quarter 3, however this may be due to the reduction in people going to COVID-19 vaccination appointments. Usage of the Ryedale
Rover dropped by a third, whereas the volunteer car scheme saw no significant change in activity.

Page 66

Our communities; strong, inclusive and attractive

Ryedale is home to hundreds of voluntary organisations
delivering invaluable services for local people. We will
work with this essential sector to ensure it continues to
flourish. We will aim to build strong communities by
contributing to community events, activities and facilities
through our community grants scheme.

Healthy and happy communities
Description

Community Connect website views

Community Development Grants
Number of community events
attended by Community Team officers

4

Value/
Baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Data Only

320

424

248

299

Annual budget
£45,372

6 totalling
£4,347

5 totalling
£10,250

11
totalling
£23,808

1 totalling
£5,000

Data Only

1

12

22

12

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Ryedale District Council, North Yorkshire Police and North Yorkshire County Council set up the Community Connect Partnership to coordinate our response and
support for our most vulnerable citizens. The partnership aims to improve connectivity, support and inclusivity in Ryedale’s communities and the website brings
together public services, Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) and community voluntary groups, to provide information for those seeking help and
assistance. Quarter 4 saw an increase in the number of Community Connect website views, potentially due to the rebranding of the Ryedale Community Connect
Bulletin, which resulted in a more engaging format, with an appealing visual layout including a number of photographs.
 Community Grants are open to any Ryedale community-based organisation or group, for projects that make a positive impact on community owned or managed
facilities and activities in Ryedale, such as village halls, play areas, sports facilities, village-owned shops and activities that support the local community. The
Council considers grant applications through the Grants Working Party and decides on recommendations for approval at Policy and Resources Committee. The
remaining Community Development Grant funding for the financial year 2021/22 of £5,000 was awarded in quarter 4.

Page 67

We will promote our creative industries and expand our
cultural offer by supporting Ryedale’s network of skilled
craft businesses and thriving arts hubs.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 During quarter 4, the Council’s Small Arts Grant Scheme provided for 14 creative singing sessions for
toddlers at Norton Hive; a photographic and audio exhibition at the Moors Rooms, Kirkbymoorside; and
a regional artist networking event open to the public at Community House, Malton.
 Renovation work including installation of new sound and lighting equipment and refurbishment of the
main hall at the Milton Rooms in Malton progressed as a result of funding approved by Ryedale District
Council. Completed works included refurbishment of the toilets, installation of an access lift and lighting
and sound infrastructural/rigging work.
 Museums are amazing repositories of wonderful artefacts and curiosities, and during this quarter the
Council developed an Out of the Box cultural education project to get museum objects into the
community. A variety of resources provide groups in schools, care homes and other community groups
with opportunities to express opinions and understand more about Ryedale’s heritage.
 The Creative Economy Commissioning programme was designed to strategically support our cultural
sector locally, providing investment to help develop activity, strengthen partnerships and support
training and skills provision. During quarter 4, the Council awarded the following four Ryedale District
Council Creative Economy Commissions: a Ryedale Actor Training Programme; a Young Persons’
Technical Theatre Training Programme; National Trust community workshops and exhibitions; and a
photographic project showcasing Ryedale’s artisan crafters and their work.

5

Our communities; strong, inclusive and attractive
A place like no other - to live, work, visit and invest
Achievements in Quarter 4
 March 2022 saw the Easter Escapes for the Chocolate Connoisseur publicity campaign to promote its 20mile golden circle of Wonkaesque chocolate micro-workshops, all independent and highly individual,
We want everyone to enjoy Ryedale’s natural beauty,
where thousands of extraordinary Easter delicacies are handcrafted each year. Chocolate and Easter in
market towns, shops and amazing attractions. We will
Ryedale features in publications including the Yorkshire Post, Longing for Provence 2022, Yorkshire Life
promote our area as a hub for food, drink, creative culture
and Yorkshire Living magazines.
and active recreation.
 The Council introduced a joint partnership with Pickering Library volunteer group to improve visitor
provision and offer information on local accommodation, attractions, activities, places to eat and much
more.

Page 68

We will work with partners to meet shortfalls in our visitor
accommodation and increase visitor spend. We will
promote the district’s niche and unique activities, as well as
the development of eco-tourism.

We will support our market towns to thrive by installing
free Wi-Fi, keeping our streets tidy and devising a new car
parking strategy with residents and visitors at its heart.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Ryedale District Council allocated funding of £175,000 to the development of the Pickering Town CIC
action and funding plan, which will support outdoor recreation in Pickering. Development of a Pickering
Town Community Interest Company (CIC) cycling and outdoors activity bid and action plan progressed
during quarter 4. The plan aims to support cycling and active outdoor development through promotion
of activity and is part of a programme of projects to improve and maintain existing cycling infrastructure,
enhance public access to these facilities and support further developments outlined in the CIC’s business
plan.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council secured funding of £183,500 to install six additional Changing Places facilities across Ryedale
over the next 2 years in partnership with Forestry England at Dalby Forest and the North York Moors
National Park Authority. A Changing Place contains more specialist equipment than a standard accessible
toilet and is designed to meet the needs of disabled children and adults with complex care needs who
require carer support, appropriate equipment and more space.
 The Council engaged with Malton Town Council, NYCC Highways and Fitzwilliam Malton Estate to review
planned improvements to the signage for visitors to Malton, including signs both to and from the car
parks for those on foot and in vehicles. Detailed proposals for consultation are expected to be available
during the first quarter of the new financial year 2022/23.
 The Welcome Back Fund is providing funding to councils across England to support the safe return to
high streets and help communities and businesses to build back better from the Covid-19 pandemic. In
6

quarter 4, funding was received to provide support for landscaping around The Ropery toilets in
Pickering, and further planting schemes in Norton, Helmsley and Pickering.

Thousands flock to the district’s popular events, we will
expand our events programme by working with regional
agencies, businesses and community groups.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Progress was made in the development and scheduling of public events and activities at Ryedale
Community House in Malton including printmaking courses and drawing classes. ‘Art Happens Here’
provides artists with the opportunity to present an element of their practice in a supportive arena where
values and interests can be discussed and nurtured.

Page 69
7

Our economy; harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs

Priority

Quality homes local people can afford
RDC
Description
Target
Q1
Q2
Number of new
affordable homes
completed
Number of empty
properties brought
back into use
through Council
involvement

Page 70

High house prices and rents mean it is difficult for
local people to get onto the property ladder. We will
work with our partners to deliver more affordable
homes and ensure a supply of good quality housing
that reflects the needs of our communities at all
stages of their lives. We will work with developers and
use our own assets to achieve this, as well as bring
more empty properties back into use.

Major planning
applications
processed
within 13 weeks
Minor planning
applications
processed
within 8 weeks
Other planning
applications
processed
within 8 weeks
% of standard
searches carried out
in 10 working days

Q3

Q4

Current
cumulative
figure

Trend
(previous
Qtr)

RAG
Status

75 per
annum

33

18

4

34

89



6 per
annum

3

0

0

3

6



70%

75%

86%

100%

100%

90%



80%

74%

76%

88.6%

77%

79%



*see notes

90%

81%

89%

92%

84%

87%



*see notes

90%

55.7%

94.6%

96.4%

99.3%

85.6%



**see
notes

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Quarter 4 saw the purchase of two derelict second homes in Kirkbymoorside which will now undergo refurbishment to provide family accommodation.
 The initial meeting of the Ryedale Empty Property Working Group took place during this quarter. Progress was made in reaching agreement to identify long-term
empty properties such as those in service towns where transport links make property purchase more desirable, as well as identifying any properties of interest to
the council for a specific need in the Ryedale area, such as single-person accommodation in Pickering.
 Empty Property Week 2022 took place in quarter 4 and the Council used social media to raise awareness of empty properties in Ryedale and how to report them.
8





The Council and managing agent Rentplus worked together to complete six affordable two- and three-bedroomed homes at Wainds Fields, Kirkbymoorside, with
the remaining unit forecast to be completed in May this year. All these homes have been allocated to residents with a local connection to Kirkbymoorside.
Rural exception sites seek to address the needs of a local community by accommodating households that are either current residents or have an existing family or
employment connection. York Housing Association, part of Karbon Housing, met with Swinton Parish Council to finalise detailed plans for the rural exception site in
Swinton and further consultation with residents of the parish is expected to take place in the next few months.
The Homes England practical completion of Bay House (the former Railway Tavern) in Norton took place on the 25 March 2022, subject to a waiver in relation to
water and electric utilities. Although subject to review at the next site meeting on 14 April 2022, final completion is expected to be on 6 May 2022.

Notes
* Although the individual quarter 4 figures show a decline in the number of processing minor and other planning applications within target, the final cumulative figures
for both of these have narrowly missed the overall target for the year. Since quarter 1, notable quarterly improvements have been achieved with an increase from
74% to 77% in processing minor planning applications and an increase from 81% to 84% in processing other planning applications.
** The % of standard searches carried out in 10 working days is showing an amber status. However, this has improved from a red status since the previous quarter,
evidencing that the issues experienced in quarter 1 have largely been resolved. The individual quarterly figures have seen significant and continued improvement from
55.7% in quarter 1 to 99.3% in quarter 4, which is an encouraging statistic to take forward into quarter 1 of the new financial year 2022/23.

Page 71

We want people to live in high quality, safe and
sustainable homes. We will promote the highest
standards of construction and work in partnership to
improve energy efficiency and achieve carbon
reduction. We will work with landlords to ensure
rental accommodation, in particular houses in
multiple occupation, comply with the law and follow
best practice.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Quarter 4 saw the commencement of work on the Homes for Ukraine Scheme, with the Council working
alongside partners at NYCC and in the wider community to coordinate the actions required, including allocation
of visits to assess suitability of accommodation. Visits are due to commence from 01 April 2022.
 At the end of March 2022, a Ryedale fuel poverty alleviation project won the Energy Management Project of the
Year award at the Sustainability Leaders Awards. The North Yorkshire Warm Homes Fund, managed by our
partners YES Energy Solutions, provided funding for vulnerable householders to have improvements made to
their heating systems. A total of 19 citizens across Ryedale have been helped by the scheme, with each one
receiving fully funded A-rated central heating and, in some cases, improvements to home insulation.
 Ryedale District Council currently offers a number of schemes to eligible citizens including the North Yorkshire
Warm Homes Scheme, Ryedale Energy Saver Scheme and Green Homes Grant Scheme. In March 2022, the
Council celebrated the huge achievement of being shortlisted at the Yorkshire and Humberside Energy Efficiency
Awards for its work on fuel poverty. The winner of the awards will be announced at an awards ceremony on
Thursday 07 April 2022.

9

Our economy; harnessing Ryedale’s unique economy to deliver growth, homes and jobs

We want entrepreneurship to flourish across our
district. We will promote and support micro, small
and medium sized businesses by exploring the
introduction of a competitive grants scheme for
start-ups and offering advice as we recognise the
long term success of this sector is essential to
Ryedale’s future success.

Page 72

We will work with Government, industry and
businesses to bring new investment to the area,
expanding the commercial space on offer within the
district in a sustainable way. We will develop the
council’s role in providing workshop, incubator and
scale-up space for small start-up businesses and
facilitate the expansion of business parks.

We want young people to believe that Ryedale is a
place to build their future.
To retain our young people in the district, we will
offer information, training and opportunities to meet
the needs of our modern economy. We will work
with partners to support their start up ideas and
build relationships with higher and further education
institutions, focusing upon future skills needs e.g.
engineering, green construction and clean energy.

Open for business
Achievements in Quarter 4
 Launched in quarter 3, Ryedale’s Small Business Development Grant provides help with start-up costs for new
businesses, or to assist established businesses to grow and strengthen their market position. In quarter 4, 79
applications were received with project values totalling £243,373.64 and Ryedale District Council allocated
£68,554.17 to 25 small businesses in Ryedale.
 Distribution of the Council’s full Covid Additional Restrictions Grant allocation of £154,738 to 51 Ryedale
businesses took place, providing support to businesses who were not eligible for the previous Hospitality &
Leisure Grant.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Stanley Harrison House was identified as a potential Business Centre for use as a small scale start up office
space, with further development of proposals expected to take place.
 Ryedale District Council joined the Inward Investment Forum led by the York & North Yorkshire Local
Enterprise Partnership (NYLEP). This initiative was established by the NYLEP working collaboratively with local
authorities and partners to attract inward investment to Yorkshire.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council considered tenders and awarded a contract to the North Yorkshire Business and Education
Partnership (NYBEP Ltd) for the provision of careers advice, employment choices and guidance activities for
young people in Ryedale. Funding of £10,000 has been awarded for two years with an optional third year.
 Quarter 4 saw Ryedale District Council join the Apprenticeship Hub Steering Group, which was set up by the
Apprenticeship Service in collaboration with local authorities and training providers to identify gaps in the
market and find collaborative solutions.

10

Our environment; a sustainable, safe and clean place
A safe place to live
Description
Ryedale is a low crime area, but not without its
problems. We will tackle anti-social behaviour by
working closely with North Yorkshire Police and
other partners. We will also empower communities
to identify effective solutions to tackle speeding.

Number of ASB cases
(MAPS)

Value/
Baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Data Only

11

12

24

19

Data Only

4

1

2

2

Number of prevention campaigns

Page 73

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council acts on reports of speeding concerns to help the police determine which areas in particular to monitor. A number of locations across Malton and
Norton have been targeted for Police Speeding Monitoring due to reports of excessive traffic speeds. Community Team Officers attend these sessions to gather
information, to respond to the concerns of residents and to develop an effective working relationship with the Neighbourhood Policing Team as part of the Multi
Agency Community Safety Hub. As a result of one session which took place in March 2022, eight speeding letters and two summons were issued.
 During quarter 4, Community Team Officers assisted with Mini Police sessions at Malton, Norton and St Mary’s primary schools, led by North Yorkshire Police.
The Mini Police sessions involve 10 children per term at each school and they learn about crimes such as littering and motoring offences, and also conduct a mock
trial.
 As part of the Council’s preventative approach to environmental crimes, a Waste Duty of Care campaign commenced in quarter 4 and saw the production of
material explaining households’ responsibilities when disposing of waste, including information on legislation, organising waste disposal and how to report fly
tipping. This information will be displayed on banners and leaflets at community events and a social media campaign to support the initiative will peak in May.

We want to reduce flooding risk by investing in
flooding alleviation measures and working with
partners to provide an emergency response.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 In February 2022, Full Council approved a contribution towards a Yorkshire Water permanent solution
for Norton. This will be included in the 2022-23 capital programme, covering up to 20% of the total
scheme costs to a maximum of £152,000.
 The Council secured a £52,000 funding contribution from Yorkshire Water towards replacement of
portable pumps. These are deployed during a flood response to protect properties at risk of flooding,
forming part of the Malton, Norton and Old Malton Flood Alleviation Scheme.
 Delayed delivery of flood gates prevented property-level resilience works from being completed during
quarter 4. However, 43 properties out of 134 have had all works completed.

11

Description
We will work in partnership to uphold the highest
standards of animal welfare, train staff to deal with
issues and hold public information events.

Value/
Baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Data
Only

4

9

7

13

Value/
Baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Data Only

30

30

30

30

Number of stray dogs collected

Our environment; a sustainable, safe and clean place
Clean and attractive streets
Description
We want to keep the streets clean. We will improve
our Streetscene operations and support communities
to do more.
Number of community litter picking
groups/individuals supported

Page 74

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council has continued to support 30 community litter picking groups and individuals by supplying equipment (gloves, bags, high-visibility waistcoats and litterpicking sticks), maintaining the same collection amount of 153 bags of waste in quarter 4, as in quarter 3.
 Quarter 4 saw the approval of the Council’s application to work in partnership with Keep Britain Tidy and some of Ryedale’s community litter picking groups on an
exciting new litter research pilot.
 In February 2022, the Council celebrated the huge achievement of a Ryedale District Council Community Enforcement Officer, Martyn Barker, when he won a
national award from environmental charity Keep Britain Tidy. The Excellence in Enforcement Award honours an individual who stands out from the crowd and has
excelled at Keep Britain Tidy’s Enforcement Academy.

Our environment; a sustainable, safe and clean place
Sustainability into the future
We will take ambitious steps to reduce our carbon
footprint through regional and local initiatives. This
includes implementing our Climate Change Action
Plan.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Using the NYLEP Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool, the Council has continued to make progress in reaching a
final accounting assessment by the end of May 2022, aiming for a target of a 5% carbon emissions reduction per
year.

12

We will work collaboratively with industry,
businesses, communities and others to deliver local
and community led energy solutions that fulfil the
ambition to deliver carbon neutrality.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council has continued to support Third Energy’s Ryedale Geothermal Energy Project and awarded funding
of £50,250 to Third Energy for phase 1 feasibility. Progress has been made with the completion of initial fluid
level testing at well sites and the award of a contract to an external communications organisation to support
communication, public engagement and information dissemination. The aim of this project is to enable
assessment of the feasibility of utilising geothermal heat from existing well sites and its potential uses within
the community, agriculture and in local businesses.

Page 75

We will build the case for installation of incomeAchievements in Quarter 4
generating, energy-efficient and renewable
 The Phase 2 installation of Ryedale’s Street light upgrade programme to LEDs commenced, with Helmsley,
technologies at council-owned buildings. We will
Kirkbymoorside and Pickering areas highlighted for upgrade in 2022.
replace our street lights with energy-efficient LEDs,
procure more energy-efficient vehicles when
replacing our fleet, and facilitate more tree planting.
We will encourage others to do the same by
maximising the impact of our supply chain,
partnerships and plans.

We will increase recycling rate in line with emerging
national policy, including by promoting recycling
awareness, investing in our mini-recycling centres,
exploring the possibility of recycling a wider range of
materials and working with more trade and garden
waste collection customers. We will also work with
partners to expand ‘circular economy’ schemes
across the district.

Description

% of household waste sent
for reuse, recycling and
composting

13

RDC
Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Current
cumulative
figure

RAG
Status

50%

51%

51.2%

44.39%

38.27%1

46.51%

*see
notes

1Not adjusted for seasonal variation. Awaiting data validation by DEFRA.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 In March 2022, the Hovingham Repair Café opened with a team of volunteers ready to do their best to mend, share skills or provide advice, free of charge, to
bring items back to life and prevent unnecessary waste. 45 people attended, and the Council supported the event by providing recycling leaflets and equipment.
Of the 15 items brought in for fixing, 10 were repaired on the day and another three people left with advice about how to repair their items, with the result that
13 broken items were saved from becoming waste.
Notes
* The % of household waste recycled, composted and re-used has not reached the target due to an increase in bulky waste collections and residual waste tonnes
collected due to an increased number of residents continuing to work from home. In line with the Council’s Cleaner Streets priority, due to a higher level of activity in the
deployment of the mechanical street sweeper, quarter 4 also saw an increase in street sweeping waste tonnages. Further recycling awareness campaigns are planned for
2022-23 and the Council is considering the implementation of recycling reward schemes to further promote recycling. The service is awaiting outcomes from the
Government’s consultation into consistent collections nationally before making any changes to the kerbside collection scheme.

Page 76
We will transform customer service, using new ways
of working to improve responsiveness. We will
revamp our website, increase our social media
presence and introduce digital systems for you to
report issues and receive information. We will
support those who are digitally excluded or need
support to access online services. We will bring
partners into Ryedale House and provide options for
a ‘one-stop’ Public Services Hub.

Our organisation; an innovative, enterprising council
Accessible to all
Description
Number of complaints
received
% of stage 1 of complaints
closed within target
timescale
% of stage 2 complaints
closed within target
timescale
Number of compliments
received

14

Value/
Baseline

RDC Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

38 for
2020/21

N/A

14

4

7

11

Data Only

< 10 days

85.7%

75%

100%

82%

Data Only

< 20 days

100%

100%

100%

100%

Data Only

N/A

16

24

28

21

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The number of complaints received increased by 4 to 11 in quarter 4, compared to 7 in quarter 3. The Council received 21 compliments during this quarter, which
is a small decrease of 7 compared to quarter 3 and equates to 31% of all compliments received during the financial year 2021/22.
 During this quarter, 7 complaints were completed within the stage 1 target timescale (10 days), 2 complaints were given an extension with agreement by the
complainants due to the complex nature of the complaints, and all the extension timescales were met. However, one stage 1 complaint is ongoing due to a delay
in the response from the relevant department.
 Five stage 2 complaints were received and resolved within the 20 day target timescale.

We will improve our engagement with you, asking
for your views, and using your feedback. We will
ensure decisions are taken in the most effective way,
by consulting with those affected and strengthening
the voice of councillors at ward level.

Page 77

We will be open, honest and transparent by
publishing key policies and financial information and
responding promptly to freedom of information
requests.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 Community Multi Agency Partnership meetings (a subgroup of the community connect partnership) involve
attendees such as Town and Parish Council representatives, North Yorkshire Police, Fire, and District Council
Officers, as well as residents from communities in the district meeting to discuss and address any community
tensions. Specific progress made during quarter 4 has seen North Yorkshire Police provide further patrols in
hotspots highlighted as a concern at the meetings, which the Police would otherwise have been unaware
of. This is a positive step forward in addressing the concerns of residents and showing a proactive, intelligenceled approach to problem-solving within the local community.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council published the Financial Strategy 2022-26 after approval from Council in February 2022.

15

Our organisation; an innovative, enterprising council
Value for money
RDC
Target

Description
Budget/MTFS Strategy to be
submitted to Full Council on time
We will maintain strong finances into the future by for approval
delivering customer-focussed and cost-effective core Final accounts signed off by 31st
services.
July 2022 and 31st December 2022
with an unqualified audit opinion
for RDC
Pension pooling arrangements in
place

1

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

On
Track –
Yes/No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes1

On
Track –
Yes/No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes2

On
Track –
Yes/No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes3

RAG
Status

Page 78

All on track. Timetable for the year set out by the Policy and Resources Committee. Agreed by Full Council on 17 February 2022.

2
3

On track – subject to External Audit capacity. Draft accounts published on time and by the deadline.
These are in place as a part of the North Yorkshire scheme.

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council’s 2022/23 budget was approved by Council on 17th February 2022.
 The Final Accounts were signed off by External Audit in January 2022.

Our organisation; an innovative, enterprising council
A great place to work
Value/
Baseline

Description
We will ensure the council is a great place to work by
recruiting and retaining motivated, skilled employees.

Staff turnover

13% annually all English
authorities
(Source: LGA workforce survey
2017/18)
16

RDC
Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Data Only

4.4%

4.1%

5.7%

5.3%1

1This information provides a snapshot of the organisation’s turnover rate and would not be used to predict annual trends. This will be supported with analysis of annual

turnover and retention rates within the yearly workforce report.

Description

RDC
Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Quarter 4
2020/21: 1.17

Data Only

1.09

0.98

1.75

1.65

Quarter 4
2020/21: 2%

Data Only

2.07%

1.66%

3%

3.21%

Value/
Baseline

Sickness
We will empower staff to deliver ambitiously for
Average days lost per person
Ryedale, promote wellbeing and publish the results of
staff surveys.
Lost time rate (the percentage
of total time available that has
been lost to sickness during the
noted time period)

Page 79

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The labour market is extremely challenging at the moment, and continued challenges in this area are not unique to the Council.
 Absence rates continue to be attributed to COVID-19 where again, the Council is reflective of the national workforce. The Council’s absence rates continue to be
some of the lowest in the County.
 The Council continues to promote the various wellbeing initiatives and support mechanisms open to staff on a regular basis.

We will nurture talent through succession planning,
recruiting graduate trainees and apprentices,
implementing a work experience programme for care
leavers, and ensuring that training and development
opportunities are available for all employees.

Description

Value/baseline

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Training completion
rates

Data Only

99.6%

95.9%

93.86%

93.86%1

1Average completion rate across the 11 essential training modules. New starters have one month to complete their mandatory training modules, and so this can explain

the uncompleted modules.

17

Achievements in Quarter 4
 The Council’s training offer continues to be expanded. In quarter 4, the Council worked in partnership with Inclusive Employers to deliver four training sessions on
diversity and inclusion in the workplace. 24 members of staff attended the Inclusivity Champions sessions and another 20 completed manager-specific Diversity
and Inclusion training.

Page 80
18

Agenda Item 9e

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

